A A o o

10.

11.
12.

13.

Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY DECEMBER 6, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL
41 WEST STREET

AGENDA

Call to Order e

RECEIVED FOR RECORD
Roll Call oy 2902022 01140
Seating of Alternates JofAinn Doule

TOWH CLERE
Appl"oval of Agenda CROMMELL y £
Public Comments l/
Development Compliance Officer Report:

Director of Planning and Development Report:

New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

New Business:

a. Application #22-39: Request for a Site Plan Modification to allow for the construction
of a new storage building at the Golf Course Maintenance facility at 1 Golf Course Road.
PGA Tour is the Applicant and TPC of Cromwell is the Owner.

Public Hearings:

a. Application #22-40: Request for a Special Permit under Section 3.4.C.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the construction of a new storage building at the Golf Course
Maintenance facility at 1 Golf Course Road. PGA Tour is the Applicant and TPC of
Cromwell is the Owner,

b. Application #22-41: Request to Amend the Section 5.2 of the Zoning Regulations to
allow for electric car chargers to be permitted in Residential Zone District. Town of
Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant.

Commissioner's Comments:

Approval of Minutes:

a. November |, 2022

Adjourn:



paroaddyl  zzoz/1Z/9 $IY3 104 uoneaiipow ueld ausjuuey sawer nieydes g angeaq apin jlpmwond]  +T-7¢
paaouddy]  zezoz/e61/L suonels 3uiSieys supR mojle 01 x|  wewpuswy Suiuoy slwpaq Seipoin]  €1-22
panotddy zeoz/L/s 4S 000'T uey) Joyeau8 a8eren] 198415 LB 795-09S 131164 Uodeys g Ayrowngl  zI-£Z
£7/S U0 Juans-pasciddy uiwpy {moys Jed) nwuagd Juaa] Aesodway 193415 UIBIA 6T T poosug Asupoyl T1-7Z
panciddy 720Z/S/Y JEd MOUS -UOIEJJIDOIA Ueld 3US PeOoY $910D 19T SHIOM AN [[PMUWCID JO UMOI]  OT-22
panosddy zzoz/s/s deln auoz ayl 01 a8uey) Jo} ddy peoy |[IH UensYd D11 ‘sSuip|oH pueq uipag 09€IN|  60-22
YST 7§ peoy ulag 00T
panoddy]  zZzoz/et/v (uopue] ayl) *AQ uopueq ayl - peoy S3L1D05SY ITEYIA lPMWOD]  80-ZT
|e11UapIsay Ajlwie-13N|A pauue|d - UCIIEJLIPOIA] UBld 2US aiinbs Asjunod gst
panosddy]  zz0z/61/v 21015 U0l3UiSNg MIN -UOIIEIIpO|A] Ueld 3US]a1015 uoIBuiLNg- 21U {(UUN gH 1uapisald anp) Aepy Biead d]  £0-2T
Suiddoys bs |[amwiot)
panciddy zeoz/s/s suone|ngay Suluoz puawy 03 ddy Y/N SIqeuue) w:_coN pue Suluueld] 90-7Z
umerpunm|  7eoz/ST/E suolje|nday Suiuoz puswy o3 ddy /N D71 '9AY 159M 9 18 uuy Aey/mouiuns matpuy|  So-zz
pancaddy]  zzoe/ST/€ ped Yyse|ds pasodold yoolqapy peoy 3j1Asy21H 09 duyoougiepy/uosuems yarl  v0-z¢
panoaddy|  zzoz/61/v sjuawaacidul peoy syidunys y§ ysieyheq Aeo] €0-2¢
107 Burled 73 SUOIIRAOURY Ipede] UOIIRIPOA Ueld JUS
paroiddy 2202/S/Y s8ay Suiuoz puswy oy ddy v/N sainjuaA Aeg Ajuegl  70-z2T
paroiddy Z2Z0Z/1/¢ 72/92/9-0¢/9 W) Ino] ¥od peoy qn|d 400 aup WWIA3 N0 ¥9d| TO0-Z¢
Zzoz[xsx'Zzoz Hoday s,a0mig Dzd)\BunpesLfyiodey HuwJiad zzoz Z2d|
51534speasds\SINIANIOT IJIGNYI\2UIRIL0SD\BIBALd\
snieisi ajeq uoisag| ANAIDY 30 adAy UOREIOT US jedddy jo swen}  1wiag]




pasosddy]  zz0Z/9/0T s3ay 3uIuoZ sY3 01 JUAWpUAWY Jo) ddy 123115 152/ T uoissiuuwo) 3ujuoz pue Buluueldl  0s-zz7

panroiddy]  zzoz/9/01 uollesijipoln ue|d aus 1o} ddy peoy uiuaq 19T 6627 HRWIeAM)  6T7-CC

panosddy] zz0z/9/01 gup|q Aossaooe swely 192115 UIB|A €92 JT1 ‘sanowoiny |smwold]  8z-ze
[993s AI0JS-T JO uoidMIIsSUC)-{eacsddy ue|d S Joy ddy

psacuddy]  zz07/9/01 1PUIsIQ ABPBAD 199115 IR £97 211 ‘ealowoiny [lamwoldl  £7-7¢
eaJe piezeH pool [e1xads - 3wiad |eads Jo) ddy

Suipuag Apsdoud o114 ppe - 3ty jedads Joy ddy aue? Y2 peas g JYSIN mcw_mnmm_z 9t-te

jooug Jlawwing 71

paaocaddy] zzoz/81/0T s||e1s peoy Aseuoissiy 79 Buial ueusao]d]  §z-7e
9-t 3unjied |eucnippy - uonesyipow uejd ays 103 ddy

panrosddyl  zz07/9/0T S|eualew Jo utysni)-Nwiad [e1ads Jop ddy 132115 1939 YO Aoy 8ad3s - uononasuc) noweledl  ¥z-7g

Sulpuad dn 2aup/m JueineIsal 193015 153/, S6T (me7 Apowised) uidpy Aef o/3 77 uaxdy) emwon|  £z-zz
pooy} 152} £ 10NJ15U0D 01 pasodold-liluiad |2133ds 1oj ddy

Suipuag |earcsddy ueld 2us 104 ddy 199415 1S9/ S6T (me] Apownied) uiapy Aef 0/3 317 usyayd lemwond|  zz-ze

penouddyf  zzoz/9/0T |eaoiddy ueld sus 10} ddy peoY ulldag £¢ Zauouwlis malpuy D71 Ay IS 9| Te-zz

panoaddy 7T0z/9/6 PUISIg ARBAD peoy ulleg § suayanos Awy oo )77 ‘saanmuap Aeg Anueg| oz-zz
B2y pARZRH pOO(d [e1dads-NwWIad |eads 1o ddy

panoiddy 7202/9/6 |eaoaddy ue)d aus 1oy ddy peoy uniag ¢ suayanos Awy o/d D17 ‘sainjuap Aeg Anueg] 61-7¢

panosddy 2202/9/6 FETIEN| peoy uldag suayanos Auly 0/2 071 ‘sauniuep Aeg Anuegl  gT-zE
SIqeUUE) SN} NPV YsI|ge1sa 0] NWIa4 [e1ads 104 ddy

panoiddy zzoz/9/6 WD |e1nads 10y ddy AL RIed JIAIY 9 ouljegy Ined uyory  LT1-2t

panrosddy]  Z270z/9/01 Siqeuue) [1e19y 105 NULIdd |e1ads 104 ddy peoy uluag €€ ZIUOLIIS MIIPUY DT ‘9AY IS9M 9] 9T-7Z

paroaddy| zzoz/e6T/L Hwiad [erads Joy ddy 9ALL] Y1293S 0ST BZZInRY UIAY]  ST-ZE




panoxddy|zzoz/ST/TT usIS MIN- UOILEIYIPOIA uR|d 9IS 40} ddy 3ALId 2Y19935 0T uepaa] enysor - WA paaug 1solayll zv-zz

Zuipuaq suonengay Suiuoz puswy o1 ddy 19241S 159/ T ucIssiwwo Juiuoz ~w|w:_c:£n_ llomwos) Jo umoll Tv-zz

sulpuaq 951N07) J|09 - Hidd |epads Joy ddy peoy qnid oo 1 S3NIAIBS UOIINIISUOD 3 uBisag Inel vod| ov-zz

suipuaq 9$1N0J J]OO - UOIIBIIPO|A] ue|d 2US J0] ddy peoy qniD 09 1 S3IIAISS UOINIISUO) ] usisag 4no) vodl 6¢-zz

umelpyumlzeoe/ot/Tt UWIRY [e1dads so0f ddy pPeoy JI'H SYOON 77 yZeqqes sewoy] sq| g&-ze

pancuddylzzoz/ST/1T |eacaddy uoisiaipgng 1oy ddy]  peoy usau31aA3 04T 217 ‘wewdojaaaq jamsoy|  s¢-z7

72/67/6 leroiddy uiuipy uonedyIpoN ueld aus 1oy ddy|  esnoy uaain Aeign [jamwold jo umol| g9¢-7z

ZZ/¥/0T |eacsddy ulwpy| HUNJ] 10 Y211 - Judad 1uaal Alodwa) yed urpyas uesns]  ge-ze
uosiald - 12911S IS9M

psaocuddyl zz0zZ/T/T1 PUIsiq Aepdanp peoy {|1H uensuydf on \mm:__u_ox puei ulisg 09t  E-TC
By plezeH poold jerads-Nwiad [e1pads Joj ddy]  YST 8 peoy ulllag 0oT

paaouddyf zzoe/1/1T |enoiddy ueld 3s 10y} ddy PEOY J|IH UensuyD N Mmc__o_ox puet ulieg Q9EIN]  £E-TC
ST B Peoy ulpag 00T

pancuddy| zzoz/1/11T ue|d J31seN pasosddy ul PeOoY [|IH UBNSIIYD 5T1 ‘SBUIP|OH Pue] Uiuag 09EW|  ze-2¢
SIUDUIB|T |EUDISUIWIG OF SUONEDINHPOIA - HWIS (eppads] HST 8 peoy uipag 0ot

panouddy] zz0z/81/01 {uopue ay]) - s4adieyd Jed - UonEILIPON Ul BUS peoy $31e120SSY BBEJJIA |[aMmWoID]  TE-ZZ

alinbg Annuno) ggT




Name of Project:

Application # ad-39

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN MODIFICATION

TPC River Highlands Golf Course Maintenance Facility

1 Golf Club Road

Street Address:
Volume/Page: 242/84 PIN # 900457800
Applicant Name: Mr. James C. Triola, PGA TOUR Design and Construction Services
Address: 1PGA TOUR Bivd
Ponte Vedra Beach FL 32082
Telephone: 904-280-4882 (day) 904-382-2694 (e\;ening)
Email Address: jamestriola@pgatourhg.com
P
Oﬁﬁj‘fﬁmz Tournament Players Ciub of Connecticut, Inc.
Address: 1 Golf Club Road
Cromwell, CT
Attached:
Application fee.

Twenty-five copies of the Site Development Plan prepared in accordance with
Article 13.3 of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations.

1. Is any part of the site within 500" of an adjoining town? OYes [INo
2. Will this project require an Inland Wetlands Agency permit? O Yes No
if yes, have you obtained it? OYes [ONo
3. Wil this project require a DEP Stormnater Management Permit? [l Yes No
if ves, have you applied for it? Oves [Ne
4. Will this Project Require an STC Permit? : O Yes No
if yes, have you submitted a copy of the plans to the STC? [Oves [INo
5. Does the parking comply with the handicapped parking Oves [INeo
requirements as set forth in current version of the State Building Code? #5 Nol apphcable No new parking
lacitilies proposed as parl cf the projecl

I hereby certify that the information presented above is correct to the best of my knowledge.

)(\/-C - ‘7/29/@7

AUhcant Name and Signature " Date /



TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

LEGAL NOTICE

The Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on
Tuesday December 6, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in Room 224 of the Cromwell Town Hall at 41
West Street on the following items:

1. Application #22-40: Request for a Special Permit under Section 3.4.C .4 of the
Zoning Regulations to allow for the construction of a new storage building at the
Golf Course Maintenance facility at 1 Golf Course Road. PGA Tour is the
Applicant and TPC of Cromwell is the Owner.

2. Application #22-41: Request to Amend the Section 5.2 of the Zoning Regulations
to allow for electric car chargers to be permitted in Residential Zone District.
Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant.

At this hearing interested persons may appear and be heard and written testimony
received. This application is available for public inspection in the office of the Town
Planner.

Alice Kelly
Chairman

Dated in Cromwell, Connecticut this the 18™ day of November 2022.



Application# &3 MO

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

Type of Activity: _Qutdoor Recreation Facility (Golf Course)

{Per Section | 3.4 v C « L'* of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations)
1 Golf Club Road, Cromwell, CT Zoning District; BP

Street Address:
Assessor's Parcel ID #: 00457800 Volume/Page: 242/84

Mr. James C. Triola, PGA TOUR Design and Construction Services
1 PGA TOUR Blvd, Ponte Vedra Beach FL 32082

Telephone Number (daytime): 904-280-4882
Email Address: jamestriola@pgatourhg.com

Applicant's Name:

Address:

Property Owner's Name: Tournament Players Club of Connecticut, Inc.
Address: 1 Golf Club Road, Cromwell, CT

Description of Proposed Activity:
Construction of new equipment storage building (garage) and associated

infrastructure at the existing golf course maintenance facility.
See accompanying Application materials for additional information

I certify that 1 have read and I am familiar with the Cromwell Zoning Regulations that pertain to
this type of Special Permit activity, and with Section 13.2.d. (Sign Posting).

>t\~ C - /T/C éf/%//%ﬂ/

\J (applicant) &dle) 7




Known for excellence.
Built on trust.

GLOTCCIINIGAL
ENVIRGNMENTAL
ECoLOGICAL
WAaTEH

COMSTRUCTION
MANAGEMENT

1350 Main Street

Suite 1400

Springfeld, MA 01103

T: 413.726.2100
F: 4137321240

Wwy.gza.com

November 29, 2022
GZA File No 15.0166469.05

Town of Crornwell Planning and Zoning Commission

Attn: Stuart Popper, Director of Planning and Development
Nathaniel White Building

41 West Street, 2™ Floor

Cromwell, CT 06416

Re: Application for Site Plan Modification and Special Permit
TPC River Highlands Golf Course Agronomy Facility Storage Building
1 Golf Club Road, Cromwell, Connecticut

Dear Mr. Popper:

On behalf of the Tournament Players Club of Connecticut, Inc. (TPC), GZA GeoEnvironmental, Inc.
(GZA) previously submitted an Application for a Site Plan Modification and Special Permit (Application)
to the Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) for construction of a new storage
building at the TPC River Highlands Golf Course Agronomy Facility, located at 1 Golf Club Road,
Cromwell, Connecticut (the Project, the Site).

The new storage building is proposed to be located immediately to the east of the existing
maintenance facility and connect to the exiting paved parking lot. The Project will include demalition
of portions of the existing paved parking/circulation areas, landscaping, and associated infrastructure,
and the construction of a new one-story, 65,000-square foot {planimetric area) storage building
immediately to the west of the existing office/equipment maintenance building with associated
paving, [andscaping, utilities (electric, telecommunications, irrigation) and stormwater controls.

Additional details of the proposed construction are shown on the plans and supporting documentation
included with the previously submitted Application.

We trust the contents of previously submitted Application package and supporting documentation are
sufficient to allow for review and approval of the Application by the Planning and Zoning Commission,
and we look forward to meeting with you in the near future. Please contact the undersigned if you
have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

GZA GEOENVIRONMENTAL, INC,

Nathaniel L. 'Russell,
Principal-in-Charge

An Cguel Qpnerlunity Lnplayer BJF/v T



Fontaine, Candice

R N e

From: Jason Brade <jbrade@cromwellfd.com>

Sent: Monday, November 28, 2022 3:27 PM

To: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: Re: Zoning Approval #22-39 and #22-40

Attachments: 22-39 & 22-40 REQUEST FOR ZONING APPRCVAL. includes police and fire dept.docx
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Good Afternoon,
| do not have any issues with the initial site plans.

Respectively,

Jason J. Brade
Fire Chief

Cromwell Fire District

Cromwell Fire Department

Fire Chief's Office: 860-635-6155

Fire Marshal’s Office: 860-635-3188
Department Cell Phone: 860-876-6029
CFD Dispatch Center (24/7): 860-635-5211
Email: JBrade@CromwellFD.com

This electronic message is a public record as defined by the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act. A copy of this
message and any reply may be retained by the Cromwell Fire District and may be available for review by the public.

On Nov 28, 2022, at 14:51, Fontaine, Candice <cfontaine@cromwellct.com> wrote:

Good afternoon.

Please let me know if you have comments from the plans that were distributed on November
15[]1.

Thank you.

Candice Fantaine
Planning and Development
Administrative Secretary
Town of Cromwell

41 West Street

Cromwell, CT ¢6416

(860) 632-3422



Fontaine, Candice

From: Harold Holmes <hholmes@cromwellfd.com>
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2022 1:20 PM

To: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 22-39, 22-40 1 golf club road.

| have no comments on the site plans currently. Have a great Thanksgiving.
Stay Safe, Stay Healthy !

Harold Holmes NAFI- CEFI, IAAI-FIT
Fire Marshal

Cromwell Fire District

1 West Street Cromwell Ct 06457
hholmes@cromwellfd.com
860-635 3188 Office
860-306-6534 Cell

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of
the intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential or proprietary
information which is legally privileged. Any unauthorized review, use,
disclosure, or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended
recipient, please promptly contact the sender by reply e-mail and
destroy all copies of the original message.



Fontaine, Candice

From: Chief Lamontagne

Sent: Friday, November 18, 2022 11:49 AM
To: Popper, Stuart

Cc: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 22-39, 22-40

Stuart,

| have reviewed the submission for this application and do not have any comments.

Denise Lamantagne
Chief of Police

Cromwell Police Department
860-635-2256 x.7843
860-613-2934 fax

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and protected from general
disclosure. If the recipient or the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or person responsible to receive this
e-mail, you are requested to delete this e-mail immediately and do not disseminate or distribute or copy. If you have
received this e-mail by mistake, please notify us immediately by replying to the message so that we can take appropriate
action immediately and see to it that this mistake is rectified.



Fontaine, Candice

From: Joe Palmieri <jpalmieri@cromwellfd.com>
Sent: Friday, November 18, 2022 1:32 PM

To: Popper, Stuart; Fontaine, Candice
Subject: 22-39 22-40

Stuart,

The Water Division has no conflicts with the applications. We do request a water usage plan to aid in our Cross
Connection Survey for the entire building.

Thank you.

Joseph A Palmieri

Water Operations Manager
Cromwell Fire District

1 West Street

Cromwell, CT 06416

Phone: 860-635-4420 x1000

Fax: 860-632-0413
E-Mail:




Fontaine, Candice

From: Egan, John

Sent: Thursday, November 17, 2022 6:29 PM

To: Popper, Stuart; Driska, Bruce

Cc: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 22-39 1 Golf Club Road - Application for Site Plan Modification 22-40 1 Golf Club

Road - Application for Special Permit

| have reviewed the above referenced project and comment as observed.

Maintain the required number of accessible parking spaces and associated signage.

Sincerely, John Egan
Chief Building Official



_Fontaine, Candice

From; Peck, Rich

Sent: Wednesday, November 16, 2022 3:38 PM

To: Popper, Stuart

Cce: Fontaine, Candice

Subject: 22-40 1 Golf Club Read - Application for Special Permit
Stuart,

No CWPCA approval required.

The proposed new storage building will not be connected to sewers, and is not within the existing 20’ sewer easement,
Sincerely,

Richard A. Peck

Sewer Administrator, CWPCA
Town of Cromwell
860-632-3430
rpeck@cromwellct.com



Application#o/Q -4
TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING REGULATIONS

Name: M_Q\D_Cazmm_[ﬂ&mﬂjﬂﬂjnd Zom'vxﬂ Commission
Address: 41 West Sireet

Cromwell, OCT. 0L4Y(lLe _
Telephone: 8[90-{93Q-,‘§5Q)Q Email: o ’a)(‘,romwe“(!-|-_ doM

A. Request to Change an Existing Regulation:

1. Current Article Number: 5, . T-)

2. Current Regulation wording (attach if necessary):

3. Proposed Change wording (atach if necessary):
Add “Kesidential Zone Districts" :E% allow) {Lor
clectric hargers in Kesdentia At Disttiet,

B. Request to Create a New Regulation:

1. Suggested Article Number:

2. Zoning District(s) to be Affected by New Regulation:

3. Wording of New Regulation (attach if necessary):

C. Reason for Proposed Change or New Regulation:

(Applicant) (date



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

SPECIAL MEETING
7:00 PM. TUESDAY NOVEMBER 1, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL 41 WEST STREET

Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Ann Grasso, Chris Cambareri,
Nick Demetriades, Paul Cordone, Robert Donohue

Absent: Ken Rozich, Brian Dufresne, John Keithan

Also present: Director of Planning and Development Stuart Popper, Zoning Enforcement
Officer Bruce Driska

1. Call to Order

. . ; RECEIVED FOR RECORD
The meeting was called to order at 7:01pm by Chatrman Kelly. How 3259095 1asaan
Jodnn Doyle

TOWN CLERK
2. Roll Call CROMMELLs CT Q\/
The presence of the above members was noted.

3. Seating of Alternates

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to seat Robert Donohue
as an alternate, All were in favor; the motion was passed.

4. Approval of Agenda

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve the
agenda. All were in favor; the motion passed.

5. Public Comments - none
6. Development Compliance Officer Report:
Mr, Driska asked if anyone had any questions about his report and Chairman Kelly said

application #22-31 was not approved since it is not a permitted use in our regulations. It should
say pending approval. Mr. Driska said he would make that correction.



Chairman Kelly asked what #22-36 was and Mr, Driska said it is for a small greenhouse at the
Library and Mr. Popper said it is for the Library to start their seedlings.

7. Director of Planning and Development Report:

Mr. Popper said we are working on the STEAP grant for electric car chargers in the public
parking lot on Community Field Road and hope to combine it with a grant from Eversource and
hope to install chargers at Town Hall as well. He said the CrossRoads Plaza project is moving
along and they are hoping to repave the parking lot and island before the winter.

Mr. Donohue asked about the Scannell Property and Mr. Popper said the Inland Wetlands
application was denied 4-3 and the applicant has not filed an appeal. Mr. Cambareri asked if that
window has expired and Mr. Popper said yes, it has.

Mr. Popper also said there has been no movement on the Friendly’s building. He also said the
medical office building application will be before the Wetlands Commission tomorrow evening.

8. New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:
a. Application #22-39: Request for a Special Permit under Section 3.4.C.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the construction of a new storage building at the Golf Course
Maintenance facility at 1 Golf Course Road. PGA Tour is the Applicant and TPC of
Cromwell is the Owner.,
b. Application #22-40: Request for Site Plan Approval to allow for the construction of a
new storage building at the Golf Course Maintenance facility at 1 Golf Course Road. PGA
Tour is the Applicant and TPC of Cromwell is the Owner.
¢. Application #22-41: Request to Amend the Section 5.2 of the Zoning Regulations to
to allow for electric car chargers to be permitted in Residential Zone District. Town of
Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission is the Applicant,

Mr. Popper read all three applications and said they all require a public hearing.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Paul Cordone to accept and schedule
applications #22-39 and #22-40 for a public hearing on December 6, 2022. All were in favor; the
motion passed.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to accept and
schedule application #22-41 for a public hearing on December 6, 2022. All were in favor; the
motion passed. '

9. New Business:

10. Public Hearings:
a. Application #22-32: Request for Special Permit for Dimensional Modifications to
the approved Master Plan in a Mixed-Use Development Zone District under Section 4.6.F.1



of the Zoning Regulations at 100 Berlin Road. M360 Berlin Land Holdings is the
Applicant and the Owner.

b. Application #22-33: Request for Site Plan Approval in a Mixed-Use Development Zone
District to redevelop the site at 100 Berlin Road. M360 Berlin Land Holdings is the
Applicant and the Owner.

c. Application #22-34: Request for Special Permit (Flood Plain) under Section 4.2.P to
permit the redevelopment of the site a portion of which is in the Flood Zone AFE at 100
Berlin Road. M360 Berlin Land Holdings is the Applicant and the Owner.

Mr. Popper read the public hearing legal notice for applications #22-32, #22-33, #22-34 dated
October 18, 2022.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to open the public
hearings for applications #22-32, #22-33, #22-34. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Peter Alter, Attorney with Alter and Pearson at 701 Hebron Avenue, Glastonbury, CT said he
was here with Attorney Meghan Hope and the other members of the project to present the
applications for 100-Berlin Road. He submitted the evidence of mailings to abutters and the
affidavit attesting to posting the public hearing sign. Attorney Alter said that Attorney Hope
submitted materials in support of the application and all requirements of the zoning regulations
have been addressed by the materials submitted in advance for all three applications.

Attorney Alter said this Commission approved a master plan in May and your regulations say
that if there are changes to the approved master plan then we must request a special permit. He
said these are minor footprint changes and they feel they are very insignificant. He said the intent
of the project is to produce jobs, create housing and community development. Attorney Alter
noted that the demolition of the former hotel building will cost $2 to $3 million dollars. He said
Lexington Partners is the Developer of this project. Attorney Alter shows projects that they have
developed and said they are well received projects in the community. He showed the master plan
and said it will be a community gateway with multi-family residences, amenity buildings and
townhomes offered for sale. He said there will also be a dog park on site. Attorney Alter
discussed that they would be offer 5% of the apartments as affordable units if they receive a tax
abatement. He said we would ask as a condition of approval that the affordable housing would be
contingent on receiving a tax abatement. He said if we did receive a tax abatement we would
return to Planning and Zoning and identify the units that would be offered as affordable housing.
Attorney Alter gave Mr. Popper a proposed draft of that condition of approval.

Attorney Alter described the location and conditions of the current site and noted that the
existing building is in disrepair. He said Mr. Chuck Coursey has been doing community outreach
in an effort to meet with impacted neighbors to present the plan and address any concerns they
have. He said Mr. Coursey went door to door and called people as well. He said the biggest
concern is access to Christian Hill Road and he said that would not change. Attorney Alter said it
is currently only accessible by emergency vehicles and that is how it will remain. He said there
are concerns of a buffer but we are proposing a healthy buffers all around the property. Attorney
Alter said there is a concern regarding the height of the buildings but we will be consistent with
the surrounding area. He said this use will create less traffic than prior use. He said they will



also use the most up to date dark sky lighting. Attorney Alter said the preposed amenities on 15R
Christian Hill Road have been relocated away from the existing neighborhood. Attorney Alter
submitted 16 letters of support to Mr. Popper from residents of Christian Hill Road and also from
local supporters such as Larry McHugh of the Middlesex County Chamber of Commerce.
Chairman Kelly said we have copies and many are from residents from the other side of town.
She said only a few are from Christian Hill Road and the surrounding area. Chairman Kelly
asked if they solicited them and Attorney Alter said that Mr. Kenny of Lexington Partners is
familiar with many people in town as he lives in Cromwell.

Mr. Grant Losapio, a landscape architect with Freeman Companies at 36 John Street, Hartford,
CT gave a recap of the master plan and noted that the topography here is a challenge. He said
there will be 254 rentals, 24 condos, 12,750 square feet of amenities, 30,000 square feet of
commercial space and 441 parking spaces. He described the location of the buildings, parking
lots and the landscaping at the stte.

Mr. Mark Vertucci, Traffic Engineer with Fuss and O’Neill at 146 Hartford Road, Manchester,
CT said this is a great site for traffic access. He said they analyzed the two highest hours per day
and there is no huge influx of traffic expected from this site. Mr. Vertucci said the sight lines
exceed the DOT criteria. He said that signal phasing/timing improvements can improve existing
operations. He said the DOT made a recommendation of improvement for the widening of Route
372 at the northeast corner of the driveway by about 50 feet to allow for an eastbound left turn
lane. He said we will do that and that will also mean we will shorten the right turn lane onto
Route 91 to allow this.

Mr. Vertucci said there are 441 spaces and 40 of those spaces are dedicated to the townhomes.
He explained that the town homes will have one garage space and one parking lot space. He said
there are no other assigned spaces and that the remaining spaces will be shared with the
residential, office, restaurant and retail and they expect the max demand will be 399 spaces so
they have an 82-space surplus. Mr. Vertucci said I am very confident this is sufficient parking.
Mr. Cannata asked if the charging stations are dual charging spaces.

Mr., Jim Cassidy an Engineer with Hallisey, Pearson and Cassidy pointed out that there 2 are
single and 5 are dual creating a total of 12 charging stations.

Mr. Cassidy reviewed the utilities and said the present site has 330,637 square feet of impervious
coverage and the proposed site will have 281,780 square feet of impervious surface. He said
there will be a decrease in flow rates of 1.2% to 5.4% for various storm events. Mr. Cassidy said
there are presently no storm water quality measures in place. He said they are proposing LID and
BMP measures that will provide primary and secondary water quality treatments especially for
first flush. He said these LID and BMP measures may consist of bio-retention swales and basins,
rain gardens, vegetative filter strips and stormwater separators.

A recess was called at 8:17pm so the recording tape could be changed. The meeting was called
back to order by Chairman Kelly at 8:22pm.

Mr. Cassidy prepared an extensive review of the sewer system and showed the sewage



connection and said there will be no impact to Christian Hill Road. He said the existing flow is
54,400 GPD and the proposed flow will be 70,325 GPD. He said Sewer Administration, Richard
Peck confirmed there is ample capacity for this and it will go to the Cromwell Water Authority
for approval.

Mr. Grant Losapio a landscape architect with Freeman Companies at 36 John Street, Hartford,
CT showed the landscape plan and said special attention was paid to the buffer in the residential
area and they are adhering to the 50-foot buffer.

Mr. Emest Nepomuceno Architect at Tecton Architects, 34 Sequassen Street, Hartford, CT
showed the aerial view of the buildings discussed the building materials saying they are using
mostly stucco, white cement board, metal panels and buff brick. He showed sample boards to the
Commissioners. He showed them perforated corrugated metal panels and said they will be used
at the entry to the garages that will provide ventilation.

Jim Cassidy an Engineer with Hallisey, Pearson and Cassidy said the sequencing of the project
would be to obtain local approvals, utility disconnects and abate hazardous materials. He said
they would then mobilize large scale equipment for demolition and dismantle the hotel, the east
side of the parking garage and the infrastructure. Mr. Cassidy said the work would proceed from
east to west and then from south to north. He said construction would probably take around 2
years after approvals and demo. Mr. Cannata asked if they would be crushing during the demo to
reuse any materials and Mr. Cassidy said he wasn’t sure yet but he knows they will need another
permit for that activity.

Attorney Alter summarized the project and said that concludes their presentation.

Chairman Kelly asked if any members of the public wanted to speak regarding these
applications.

Ms. Eugenia Falco, 20 Christian Hill Road asked about the height of building 3 and said when I
look out my front window I will see the mechanicals on top of the building. She said the building
will be 107 feet high. She said this will impact us a lot. She said that Route 372 has crashes all of
the time and even Lowe’s doesn’t let you take a left hand turn out of the parking lot without
sending you to the exit with the light.

Mr. James Demetriades of 272 Skyview Drive said he only has a question and that he is looking
for some clarification of the contingency regarding affordable housing and a tax abatement,

Mr. Popper said the applicant is advising the Commission that their proposal could change if
they don’t receive a tax abatement. He said this won’t be a condition of approval. Mr.
Demetriades said we could place conditions on abatement and Mr. Popper said I have never
heard of that and this is a matter for the town attorney. Chairman Kelly said the tax abatement is
not under our purview.

Ms. Patricia Dickenson of 31 Coles Road said we walk Route 372 almost daily and people are
rushing and speeding to get onto Route 91. She said we will hear more sirens with this



development. She said if there is an accident on 91 they send traffic to Coles Road and Christian
Hill Road. She also asked the walkway to the sewer line and said they are not supposed to clear
cut trees. Mr. Popper said they have a right to cut in wetlands and the flood plains as long as you
don’t stump. Ms. Dickenson also asked about lights and Mr. Popper said they will use shield
lights with a downcast. Ms. Dickenson said the light from Lowe’s blinded us and we had to
speak to them about it but they fixed it.

Mr. Vietor Novoa of 22 Christian Hill Road said he doesn’t see how they won’t kill our privacy.
He said Christian Hill was quite for a long time and he agrees with Ms. Falco that this will
impact us and asked the Commission to please do something,

Ann Halibozek of 7 Christian Hill Road asked how the prdperty lines will be delineated and how
will people know where to walk. She asked if the walkway would be marked. She also asked
about the picnic area and if food scraps would be left behind and who will pick up the trash from
the area.

Jim Cassidy said we are replacing all lighting with high efficiency LED dark sky friendly lights.
He said the townhouses will shield the lighting to homes on Christian Hill Road. He said we are
also not planning any major clearing just cleaning up the edge of the slope. He said it is an
existing sewer line so no additional clearing is needed. He said there will be no other pathways
out to Christian Hill Road. He said we did hear of concerns of amenity areas so we moved the
dog park to the west side of the site. He said there are no other amenities proposed on the east
side adjacent to the Christian Hill Road neighbors. Mr. Cassidy said the building management
company will maintain the walking trail and picnic area as well.

Mr. Cassidy explained the building height of building B and said it is not 107 feet high but 50
feet. Ie said the peak of the houses will be the same peak of the building. He said this would be
similar to any other commercial building,

Grant Losapio said he would speak to the delineation of the property and said the 50-foot buffer
would include trees, shrubs and lawn. He said they will use what is there and add anything that is
needed.

Attorney Alter said this project has been subject extensive review by town staff. He said the
local police have reviewed this and have no concerns. He said there is not a significant increase
to traffic on Berlin Road and we are not responsible for what is going on now on Route 372.
Attorney Alter also said that with all due respect to 22 Christian Hill Road we are completely
compliant with all requirements and have done everything we could to prevent intrusion. He said
a 150-lot subdivision would be much worse. He said they are trying to offer the residents of the
townhome’s privacy as well.

Mr. Popper said the question of property lines was raised and Attorney Alter said we are trying
to change as little as possible and a fence would require us to clear the woods and we don’t want
to do that. He said if there is a problem we would address it immediately. Mr. Losapio said there
is existing vegetation on the west side and they are adding to it to ensure there is a 50-foot buffer.
He said we won’t cut the existing vegetation except for a selective cutting for utilities.



Mr. Donahue asked if the fire marshal had any comments and Mr. Popper said the fire marshal
signed off on the new plans on Friday.

Ms. Grasso said it was a great presentation but the townhouse roofline surprised me. She said
they don’t transition well and don't look like New England. She asked what the backside looked
like and asked if there was an exit there that invaded privacy.

Mr. Nepomuceno showed the clapboard backside and said the eastern townhomes have a patio
on the North and the north townhomes have a patio on the north towards Christian Hill Road. He
said the townhomes descend a bit.

A recess was called at 9:34pm to change the recording tape. The meeting was called back to
order by Chairman Kelly at 9:39pm.

Mr. Martin Kenny, Lexington Partners, 1 Financial Plaza, Hartford, CT said that Cromwell needs
contemporary architecture and I didn’t just come up with this. He said his company has done lots
of research with other developers and real estate companies in town. He said he also lives in
Cromwell. Chairman Kelly asked if he has ever built townhomes like this and Mr. Kenny said
no, but I have never built townhomes condominiums before.,

Mr. Cambareri thanked Mr. Kenny for the professional presentation and said hopefully we can
approve this tonight. He said it looks amazing and you met all the regulations. He said to please
keep an eye out for what the neighbors are looking for.

Mr. Demetriades said that some homes will look into the back of these townhomes and he hopes
they will keep the line of sight as green as possible. He asked about the open parking concept
and Mr. Alter said it is an urban attitude where people understand they may have to walk to get
to their car. Mr. Demetriades also asked about the affordable housing. Attorney Alter said they
have to satisfy the CT Department of Housing Standards to offer 5% of the units at a price of
80% of the medium income. He said those units must remain like that for 40 years. He said the
tenant must re qualify every year. Attorney Alter said Cromwell doesn’t have a housing authority
but Mr. Kenny does have a system in place for this and would share his reporting with the town.
Mr. Kenny said this project doesn’t work without a tax abatement, Attorney Alter said if that
falls apart they would come back to work that out.

Mr. Cordone asked about the type of trees they would use in the buffer and Mr. Losapio said
they will pick two different types of trees and try to use native planting wherever possible. Mr.
Cordone asked if they would use a screening around any mechanical units on the roofs of the
building to ensure their neighbors don’t have that view. Mr. Kenny said they haven’t finalized
energy systems yet but sometimes they could require less infrastructure on the roofs but we can
put screenings around them regardless. Mr. Cordone said the presentation was awesome,

Mr. Cannata asked about the 5% affordable housing and Attorney Alter said in their binders
there was a spreadsheet which showed the proportionate spread of studios, one bedroom and 2-
bedroom units that would be available for the 5%. Mr. Cannata asked about solar energy and Mr.
Kenny said they are interested in this and we have met with some contractors regarding this. Mr.



Cannata asked what would happen if they didn’t get the tax abatement and asked if they would
change the scope of the project. Mr. Popper said I haven’t seen any tax abatement denied by the
town but we just don’t know the amount and time of the abatement. Mr. Kenny said we would
have a problem. Attorney Alter said his client would not walk away from the project if this
doesn’t go forward and we will do anything we can and will look to other resources.

Chairman Kelly said I applaud this presentation but don’t like the townhomes.

Mr, Popper said the public hearing is still open and there are 13 letters of support for the project
with two from residents on Christian Hill Road. John and Doreen Danek are concerned the
emergency access could be turned into public access. Mr. Popper said we can see on the site
plan it won’t ever be open to the public and the developer has assured us it won’t change and
will always be gated. He said there is also a letter of support from the Middlesex County
Chamber of Commerce.

Mr. Popper said all town comments have been submitted and Mr. Egan’s comments from
October 17th haven’t been addressed and Mr. Harriman’s memo from October 25th haven’t been
addressed so any approval should have these conditions. He said that they meet the parking
requirements that the police chief had. Chairman Kelly asked about snow removal plans and Mr.
Cassidy said there is a specific snow plan where we would store the snow.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to close the public
hearing for applications #22-32, 22-33, 22-34. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Mr. Popper said the applicants should be decided in the order of #22-32, #22-33, #22-34.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve
application #22-32 with the condition that comments from Mr. Egan’s memo dated October 17th
and Mr, Harriman’s memo dated October 25th be adhered to. All were in favor; the motion
passed.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to approve
application #22-34 with the condition that comments from Mr. Egan’s memo dated October 17th
and Mr. Harriman’s memo dated October 25th be adhered to. All were in favor; the motion
passed.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Paul Cordone to approve application
#22-33 with the condition that comments from Mr. Egan’s memo dated October 17th and Mr.
Harriman’s memo dated October 25th be adhered to. All were in favor; the motion passed.

11, Commissioner's Comments:
12. Approval of Minutes:

a, October 6, 2022
Mr. Popper said we will have the minutes at our next meeting.



13. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Robert Donohue to adjourn at
10:16pm. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk



